ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2015
3:30 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Gary Stevens

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 3
Desi gnati ng January 25 - 31, 2015, as Al aska School Choice Wek.

- MOVED CSSCR 3(EDC) QUT OF COW TTEE

PRESENTATI ON:  ANSVEERS ( ALASKA NAVI GATOR:  STATEW DE WORKFORCE AND
EDUCATI ON- RELATED STATI STI CS)

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SCR 3

SHORT TITLE: AK SCHOOL CHO CE VEEK
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STOLTZE

01/ 26/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 15 (S) EDC
02/ 05/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATCR BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SCR 3.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -1- February 5, 2015



St ephani e Butler, Director of Operations

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on ( ACPE)
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented i nformati on on ANSVERS.

D ane Barrans, Executive Director

Al aska Commi ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on Conm ssion ( ACPE)
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on on ANSVEERS.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:30: 07 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Gessel, Gardner, and Chair
Dunl eavy.

SCR 3- AK_ SCHOOL CHO CE WEEK

3:30:56 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consi derati on of SCR 3.

SENATOR BILL STOLTZE, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced SCR 3 which designates a School Choice Wek. He said
the resolution is about the broad concept of school choice that
exists in our public schools - charter schools, technical
school s, home schools, and conbinations thereof, serving parents
and their famlies. He nentioned the Mut-Su School District's
variety of school choices, systens of education that are best
for the students and the parents while neeting the requirenments
of education. He noted that M. David Boyle requested this
legislation in order to celebrate that educational choices
exist. He reiterated that the educational system that best
serves the student and famly should be the primary reason for
t he program

3:35:41 PM

SENATOR STOLTZE praised the great teachers in the state. He
noted the date of the resolution has passed and nay be altered.
He said the resolution has no cost. He reiterated that the
primary purpose of the educational systemis to best serve the
student and famly.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted no fiscal note.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 2- February 5, 2015



SENATOR d ESSEL voi ced appreciation for the resolution.

SENATOR GARDNER said she likes the resolution. She remarked that
public schools often are alternative schools and she does not
see themreflected in the resol ution.

SENATOR STOLTZE said they are fully recognized in the
resolution. He comrented on waiting lists for public school
charter school s.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY appl auded the resolution and said he would add
his nanme as sponsor. He said he was a believer in education and
agreed there were a nunber of choices in Al aska. He opined that
choi ce does not have to be controlled by the governnent.

3:40: 32 PM

SENATOR HUGA NS noved to delete "25-31, 2015" on page 1, line 1,
and insert "24-30, 2016" in its place. He instructed to do the
sane on page 2, line 6.

There being no objection, the Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that nost charter schools would not
like to be considered as alternative school s.

SENATOR STOLTZE agreed that school <choice is different than
alternative school. "Choice" is the accurate descriptive word.

SENATOR HUGA NS nmoved to report SCR 3, as anended, from
coommittee wth individual recommendations and attached zero
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSSCR 3(EDC) was reported
fromthe Senate Education Standing Commttee.

3:43:51 PM
At ease

PRESENTATI ON:  ANSVERS ( Al aska Navi gator: Statew de Wrkforce and
Educati on- Rel ated Statistics)

3:45: 27 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced a presentation on Alaska Navigator:
St at ewi de Workforce and Education-Rel ated Statistics (ANSVERS)

Stephanie Butler, Diorector of Operations, Al aska Postsecondary

Education Commi ssion  Depart nment of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED), introduced herself.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 3- February 5, 2015



D ane Barrans, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE), Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), introduced herself.

3:46: 53 PM

M5. BUTLER began by stating the mssion of Al aska Navigator:
Statewi de Workforce and Education-Related Statistics (ANSVERS)
which is to deliver outcones information to Al aska stakehol ders
to assess, evaluate, and inprove the state's education and
career developnment spectrum She said the presentation wll
enphasi ze the privacy and security of the program She pointed
out that P-20W SLDS neans "preschool through grade 20 and
wor kf orce statew de |ongitudinal data system" Al aska received a
federal grant of $4 mllion over 3 years which ends on June 30,
2015. The noney was distributed to the University of Al aska
(UA), DEED, Departnment of Labor and W rkforce Devel opnent
(DOLVD), and ACPE.

She discussed roles of the ANSVWERS project: APCE is the project
manager, DEED is the fiscal agent, and the other partners work
within their expertise areas. She related that ACPE has had a
long-term interest in coordinating statewide activities that
pronote access and success and also has authority and
responsibility to do so. Additionally, the program would solve
the challenge of access to data, in particular, |ongitudinal
data, to neasure outcones.

3:50: 00 PM

M5. BUTLER discussed why Alaska needs a cross sector P-20W
| ongi tudinal data system It wuld allow Alaska |eaders to
transform the way prograns and outconmes are neasured. Currently,

ACPE is only able to nmeasure program input and is not able to
answer if prograns nmake a difference long term and are
effective.

3:51: 07 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked how progranms are selected and which ones
are currently being neasured and st udi ed.

M5. BUTLER replied that ACPE surveyed stakeholders to find out
whi ch prograns were priorities. The targeted priority wll be to
determ ne how K-12 students are performng in the workforce and
what wages they receive.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -4- February 5, 2015



She continued to explain that another reason for a cross sector
| ongi tudinal data systemis to protect confidential student and
citizen data and protected i nformation.

3:53:27 PM

M5. BUTLER expl ained the privacy and security approach wth the
enphasis on protecting individual privacy and security
t hroughout pl anni ng, devel opnent, and inplenentation of ANSVERS
|t Is a conservative design approach that prevents the
identification of individual students.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there is an assunption that all students
will be a part of the data gathering. He asked if there is an
opt-in choice for parents or an adult student option to opt out.

M5. BUTLER replied that there is no opt-in or opt-out policy
because the data has already been collected by partner
organi zations. There is an inpact on the ability to use the data
if it is mssing certain populations. Also, students would have
to be identified in order to let themopt in or out.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY thought the program mght be a problem for
Al askans due to hacking concerns.

M5. BUTLER turned to the project tinmeline. The project is in
stage 4 - data reporting - and is custom zed for Al aska. She
described the objectives and operating principles of the data
collection. The first principle is linking current cross-sector
data using transparency and security. The second principle is
mai ntaining the sharing of data while ensuring privacy of
i ndividual unit records. The third principle is the protection
of individuals' privacy. These operating principles were
formal | y adopted by the agencies' four CEO s.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked who the four CEO s are.

M5. BUTLER answered the president of UA, the conm ssioners of
Labor and Education, and the executive director of ACPE.

She returned to the operating principles of data collection. The
fourth principle is that data contributors own their data.
Fifth, is that the data value is increased through common
understanding and wuse, and sixth, that the ongoing ANSVERS
system design and maintenance is able to expand as needed. The
goal is to have a long-life system

3:59:51 PM

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 5- February 5, 2015



M5. BUTLER said operating principles guide the paraneters of the
system design. Data is de-identified and aggregated. Soneone in
the community could not identify a specific student. It does not
replace or usurp existing data systenms. It uses subsets of data
from various partners' data systens as appropriate to answer
critical questions and use cases. It is based on nulti-agency
governance structure requiring input, review, and agreenent by
the four founding partner organizations. It addresses cross-
sector queries that cannot be answered by individual partners.
Finally, the output is based on best practices and individual
privacy protections.

4:02:19 PM

She talked about the nmulti-tiered governance structure which
operates on a consensus nodel. Each CEO appoints a data/project
manager from their partner organization and an inplenmentation
team She stressed that stakeholder commttees and advisors
gui de the project.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for the nanes of the stakehol der groups.
M5. BUTLER replied that one of the stakehol ders are parents.
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked what the parents' role is.

M5. BUTLER explained that parents provided information about
what educational outcones they value. They requested to know
whi ch prograns and activities are nost successful.

She added that teachers, legislators, admnistrators, schoo
boar ds, gener al public, and board of regents are also
st akehol ders.

SENATOR GARDNER said this is the first tinme she has heard of
ANSVERS and is not aware of outreach to |egislators.

M5. BUTLER spoke of significant outreach to a variety of
organi zati ons throughout the state, such as PTA She terned it
very chal | engi ng.

4:06: 14 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for two wishes for the program

M5. BUTLER answered that it would be heavily used and provide

value and the information would be wuseful to students and
parents so that they can make infornmed choi ces.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 6- February 5, 2015



SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that he is not convinced it will be of
use.

SENATOR GARDNER said she feels the same. She acknow edged that
data is very powerful. She asked if the Institute of Social and
Econom ¢ Research (ISER) and DOLWD do the sane thing wth
wor kf orce information data, or if ANSWER woul d take | SER s dat a,
for exanple, and use it in a different manner. She questioned if
it was necessary to have this nmuch data.

M5. BUTLER replied that it is appropriate for a nunber of
organi zations to collect workforce data and ANSWERS is designed
to be a resource for a nunber of those organi zations.

SENATOR GARDNER inquired if ANSVWERS is setting up a tenplate or
storage area for information.

M5. BARRANS said that is exactly the goal. She agreed that the
data is found elsewhere. She predicted that workers are
experienci ng success in varying degrees and the goal is to find
out why; which prograns and districts produce success. She
concluded that ANSWERS takes a granular |ook at successes and
failures.

SENATOR GARDNER asked how success is defined - by pay scale, job
satisfaction, or enploynent.

MS. BARRANS responded that it depends on the questions asked.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for the federal governnent's bottom |ine as
t he grantee.

M5. BUTLER said that the requirenment was that the state build a
| ongi tudi nal data system

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the federal governnent could access the
state's data base.

M5. BUTLER said it was not a requirenment of the grant and there
is no intent or design to provide information to the federal
gover nnent .

CHAI R DUNLEAVY repeat ed the questi on.

M5. BUTLER stated that the federal government has no |egal right
to any information.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -7- February 5, 2015



4:13: 05 PM

M5. BUTLER hi ghlighted the governance structure that would exi st
after the grant ends. She turned to the roles of high-Ievel
policy questions Al aska devel oped by the four partners in 2009
and revised in 2012. These questions are designed to identify
hi gh-1evel information needs, not currently available wthout
linked data. They determi ne which data elenents are included in
ANSVERS and they require Executive CGovernance Board approval to
change.

She added nore detail regarding privacy and security. An exanple
of the privacy/security tradeoff was a question posed to ANSVERS
about an individual child in an intervention program That
information could not be sought because it would require
identifying the child. What is allowed is a look at the sum
total of students who went through a program and then neasure
t heir success.

She discussed the privacy and security protocols. ANSWERS is
designed to separate identifying information from incom ng data
so it cannot be exposed, derived by users, or identify
i ndi viduals. She shared design considerations to ensure this
happens.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the conmm ssion would support stiff civil
and crimnal penalties for any entity or individual that
broached the security.

M5. BARRANS said she was not associated with the Departnent of
Law, but woul d consider extra nmeasures or safeguards.

4:18:12 PM

M5. BUTLER showed a diagram of privacy and security systens. She
said the first systemis the partner data system where specific
elements are extracted from the identifiable data; the second
system records the de-identified data, and the third aggregates
the data before it is displayed to the public in the fourth
system She enphasized that the information is isolated and
saf eguarded and very segregat ed.

M5. BARRANS added that transparency is a critical conponent of
ANSWERS. It is very inportant that public data elenents are
witten in plain | anguage so they are very easy to understand.

MS. BUTLER reported that ACPE applied for, and received, noney

from a second grant that allowed for research of other state
approaches to simlar data systenms. She noted that states vary

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 8- February 5, 2015



in their approaches. She described two sinmilar state approaches
and provided exanples from M ssissippi - LifeTracks, and from
Arkansas - strong privacy protection and research use of data

Arkansas is actively assisting Alaska with ANSVWERS. She used the
Al aska Performance Schol arship Qutconmes Report as an exanpl e of
the kind of product that could cone out of ANSVERS, but involve
much | ess work.

M5. BUTLER pointed out that the grant ends on June 30, 2015. In
order to achieve sustainability, the goal is to transition from
a project to a program with a Program Managenent O fice (PM)
that would ensure that ANSWERS adheres to all privacy and
security practices and governance policies, and develops and
updates public reports, identifies energing stakeholder needs,
and proposes new information products. She noted that it will be
a nodul ar structure and could be used in a variety of agencies.
It is currently scheduled for a three-year incubation period at
ACPE, funded by the Al aska Student Loan Corporation (ASLC
within ACPE s operating budget with annual costs estimted at
$1.2 mllion. She concluded that docunentation of program
success is nore often needed in tines of budget crunching.

4:26: 30 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY t hanked the presenters. He noted the $1.2 nillion
cost and requested nore information about the source of those
f unds.

M5. BARRANS replied that the noney is from ASLC receipts and
wi |l absorb costs for the next three years.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if it was required in the grant to maintain
the program after three years.

M5. BARRANS said the grant required a commtnment to seeking a
sustai nable nodel to maintain the function of the system She
concl uded that there are no guarant ees.

SENATOR HUGGE NS questioned the use of data from Arkansas and
M ssissippi. He wondered if this programw |l nmake a difference
in 20 years.

M5. BUTLER said she hopes that in 20 years it can be said that
ANSVERS was used to direct resource and policy decisions in such
a way that it was the nost efficient, effective use of funds to
serve students.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 9- February 5, 2015



SENATOR HUGA NS shared that a school board often does not know
how gr aduat es do.

M5. BUTLER noted that an ANSWERS product has been designed to
provide a district feedback report that wll show how students
are doing in the workforce and in post-secondary education. This
program has been denonstrated to several districts wth
extrenely positive feedback.

SENATOR HUGGE NS gave an exanple of inaccurate graduate/dropout
statistics.

M5. BUTLER coul d not give assurance that 100 percent of students
will be reached, but she felt confident that there would be
vastly i mproved i nformation, significantly nor e timely
i nformati on, and nore students brought back on track.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY nentioned students from out of state and in
various alternative prograns. He asked if the fact that not all
Al askans would be part of the program had been considered. He
revisited the op-in concept. He inquired if federal guidelines
provide that private school and hone school students would be
included in the future.

M5. BUTLER said there was nothing in the federal guidelines
relative to that. The Al aska System design is if the student has
at any point during their life touched the Al aska System the
student's data woul d be incl uded.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said nore constituents are opting out of the

public school system so they will not be tracked. He cautioned
that future bills mght address this issue.
4:35: 02 PM

There being nothing further to cone before the commttee, Chair
Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee at
4:35 p. m

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -10- February 5, 2015



